
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Thursday 18 March 2021 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Friday 26 March 2021, 1.30 pm 
 

Zoom Virtual Meeting 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Michael Heaslip (Chair) Councillor Iain Greaney (Co-Chair) 
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Carmel Bell 
Councillor John Crouch Councillor Allan Daniels 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger Councillor Alan Hedworth 
Councillor Daniel Horsley Councillor Adrian Kirkbride 
Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes Councillor Paul Scott 
 

This meeting will be broadcast live on the Allerdale Borough Council YouTube™ Channel.  
 

If you have any questions or queries, contact Ian Hinde on 01900 702544 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Minutes (Pages 3 - 8) 
 

 To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 26 February 2021 
  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda, in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 
 
 
 

  



4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm on a working day, allowing two clear 
working days before the day of the meeting. 

  

5. Public Participation   
 

 To hear representations from members of the public on items which appear on 
the agenda – submitted in writing or by electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 
working days before the meeting. 

  

6. Update on Workington and Maryport programmes and next steps   
 

 Verbal Presentations 
  

7. Local Government Reorganisation - discussion of the Council's response 
to the Government consultation   

 

8. Future development of Overview and Scrutiny (Pages 9 - 20) 
 

 a) Liaison with Audit Committee 
b) New advice from the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 

  

9. Update report from Response to the Pandemic Task and Finish Group   
 

10. Update report from the Budget Task and Finish Group   
 

11. Forward Plan (Pages 21 - 32) 
 

12. Work Programme 2020/21 (Pages 33 - 34) 
 

 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Friday 23 April 2021, 1.30 pm 

Zoom Virtual Meeting 
 
 



At a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on 
Friday 26 February 2021 at 1.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Michael Heaslip (Chair) Councillor Iain Greaney (Co-Chair) 
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor John Crouch 
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Councillor Alan Hedworth Councillor Daniel Horsley 
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Carmel Bell, Councillor Adrian 
Kirkbride, Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes and Councillor Paul Scott 
 
Staff Present 
 
B Carlin, A FitzGerald, N Hardy, I Hinde and L Jardine 
 
 
 
333. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 January 2021 were signed as a correct 
record. 
 

334. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared 
 

335. Questions  
 
None received 
 

336. Public Participation  
 
None received 
 

 Update on Procurement Task and Finish Group  
 
Councillor Greaney provided an update to members following his attendance 
at an informal meeting of the Executive. 
 
The Executive agreed to all 17 recommendations and some were discussed 
in detail.  
 
Councillor Greaney proposed that Overview and Scrutiny follow continue to 
work with Executive to ensure the recommendations are implemented, this 
will be potentially added to the Work Programme for 2021/22. 
 
Councillor Heaslip confirmed that the Co-Chairs have met with the Chair and 
Deputy Chair of the Audit Committee to discuss collaborative working and the 
Audit Committee will also be auditing the recommendations made to the 
Executive from the Procurement Task and Finish Group. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



  
337. Project Management System  

 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Innovation and Commercial) delivered a 
presentation to members which included, 
 

 Why the Programme Office was set up 

 The Role of the Programme Management Office (PMO) 

 Current Programmes 

 Governance of Programmes and Projects 

 Criteria for defining projects 
 
Members were then advised that there are 21 ongoing projects within the 
transformation programme and that 7 of these are completed. 
 
In the regeneration programme, 29 projects are ongoing, 12 projects each for 
the Workington and Maryport and 5 general projects, such as the Allonby to 
Silloth Coastal Cycle Path. 
 
The next steps for the Programme Office are to implement the agreed Capital 
Strategy and to enhance the local assurance framework to deliver functions as 
accountable body, as the programme office move to the delivery of grant funded 
regeneration programmes. 
 
Members then asked questions in relation to training and development and on 
the current situation in respect of officers working from home. 
 
It was clarified to members that the project boards within the PMO are simply 
officer steering groups and also the council is accountable to itself but also in 
the case of the Workington and Maryport projects to the Minister of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government. 
 
Discussion then followed in relation to sports and leisure as the current contract 
for leisure centres ends in 2024. The PMO are beginning to look at all future 
options and will engage with all stakeholders when assessing the future of 
sports provision. 
 

338. Economic Recovery and Growth Strategy  
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Performance and Economic Strategy) 
provided an update to members, reminding them that a session is scheduled on 
01 March 2021 to discuss the policy in detail. 
 
The Economic Recovery and Growth Strategy will address the Council plan 
themes and in particular ‘Create thriving towns and villages’ and ‘Invest to 
grow’. The strategy will also serve as a pandemic recovery plan, looking at long 
term recovery opportunities. This is in addition to the interim recovery plan 
which focused short term on facilitating grants for businesses and preparing 
them for lockdowns and business interruptions. 
 

Page 4



The strategy will assist the council adapt to the changing nature of the high 
street, support businesses, use assets, stimulate economic growth and build on 
the Councils destination management work. 
 
Members were then provided a timeline of the process and that the origins of 
the new strategy were from the 2016 business growth strategy which primarily 
focused on supporting businesses through austerity. In March 2020, 
commissioning for the new strategy focused on three key areas, economic 
investment, Workington Town Fund and Economic Strategy/Implementation 
plans, the pandemic however changes the brief and the commission also had to 
consider economic recovery. 
 
The strategy will be underpinned by a 10-year vision which is for Allerdale to 
become a strong diversified, well connected economy with a growing highly 
skilled population. The vision includes several key themes 
 

 Low Carbon, Green Economy 

 Manufacturing 

 Agriculture 

 Harnessing changing working patterns 

 Creating thriving towns and communities 

 Sharing the proceeds of growth 
 
The next steps of the process are to open the draft strategy up for consultation 
and then to develop implementation plans. A commission is also underway to 
look at the strengths and opportunities for the other towns in the Borough, 
(Keswick, Cockermouth, Silloth, Wigton, Aspatria) similar to the work already 
undertaken for Workington and Maryport, with focus also on large employer 
areas at Lillyhall and Oldside.  
 
Members were advised that the final Economic and Growth Strategy will be 
published early in the 2021/22 financial year. 
 
Debate ensued in relation town centre regeneration and the role agriculture and 
the rural industry can play in local economic growth and development. 
 

339. Quarter 3 Performance Report 2020/21  
 
The Chair introduced the item and advised members that for information and 
reference, the Quarter 3 Financial Report for 2020/21 was included in the 
agenda report pack and will continue to be included going forward. 
 
The Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) then introduced 
the Quarter 3 performance report for 2020/21 and provided an overview of the 
report including key projects and activities, corporate KPIs and strategic risks 
which are based on the interim delivery plan.  
 
Members were informed that most of the activities/projects were performing as 
expected.  In terms of KPIs, of the 40 indicators, 3 indicators were currently off 
target and 13 had ‘no fixed target figure’. 
 

Page 5



The KPI target setting process was explained to members and is set by service 
areas based on past performance and influences which may affect targets. 
From the targets the RAG rating is set on a fixed basis, where variances will be 
based on 10%. Members will review the targets for 2021/22 as part of the 
delivery plan. 
 
Following questions relating to the ‘red’ KPI indicators, it was explained to 
members that the social media indicator fluctuates but that the local spend has 
reduced due to a large number of payments made on capital projects. Although 
some of the suppliers are from outside the area, they did subcontract to local 
suppliers in accordance with Council procurement requirements.  
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Performance and Economic Strategy) 
explained to members that the revision of the performance management 
framework is ongoing, with delays due to the pandemic, detailed conversations 
are due will be held with members in relation to performance targets and data 
used. 
 
Members asked questions in relation to fly tipping as it appears fly tipping has 
increased but the report states that the Council is meeting its targets. The Chair 
used this example to highlight to members that the performance report may not 
provide the information members need. 
 
Members debated bin collections which were affected by adverse weather and 
recycling initiatives. It was noted that at peak times, recycling centres are at 
capacity and it was suggested to officers that communication around peak 
periods should be increased to advocate positive behaviours.  
 
Debate then ensued in relation to the creation of a Housing company and grant 
application and distribution. 
 
Members noted the contents of the report. 
 

340. Forward Plan  
 
Members noted the contents of the forward plan 
 

341. Work Programme 2020/21  
 
The Chair confirmed to members that he had consulted with the Co-Chair 
regarding the work programme and suggested that as the Economic Recovery 
and Growth Strategy is going to Executive Committee in April 2021, it should be 
included in the March 2021 meeting along with the Maryport and Workington 
Regeneration programmes. As the consultation on Local Government 
Reorganisation has opened, it was also suggested that this is included in March 
2021. Members agreed and debate ensued in relation to Local Government 
Reorganisation including the proposals made by other authorities.  
 
The Chair confirmed that officers will seek recommendations from all members 
of the council for the 2021/22 work programme. 
 

Page 6



Questions were asked in relation to staff welfare during the pandemic, it was 
confirmed that SMT, HR and line managers are constantly providing necessary 
support to staff whilst looking at new ways of working. 
 

 Councillor Grainger left the meeting   
  
342. Task and Finish Group Updates  

 
Pandemic Task and Finish Group 
 
Councillor Heaslip as Chair of this group advised that the group has highlighted 
its work in the Overview and Scrutiny Report for Council (03 March 2021). The 
group has focused on the pandemic impact on poverty, schooling, communities 
and the Councils operating model.  
 
Budget Task and Finish Group 
 
The group has finished its latest work on the budget setting process and how 
the budget is built. 
 
A meeting was held on 25 February 2021 with officers and Executive to 
understand the decision-making process and why some items were included in 
the budgets and some were not, and to understand the rationale. Concerns 
were shared and the group will monitor the budget going forward. Discussions 
will continue and specifically will focus on staffing and resourcing. 
 

The meeting closed at 3.40 pm 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



1 
 

 

 

The governance risk 
and resilience 
framework 
 
A summary 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



2 
 

 

 

 

Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 

March 2021 

A fuller version of this material can be found at 
http://www.cfgs.org.uk/governancerisk  

Copyright © CfGS 2021 

Permission granted to reproduce for personal and educational use only.  

For more information, please contact Ed Hammond / ed.hammond@cfgs.org.uk  

 

 

 

About the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 

The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) is social purpose consultancy and 
national centre of expertise. Our purpose is to help organisations achieve their 
outcomes through improved governance and scrutiny. 

CfGS exists to promote better governance and scrutiny, both in policy and in 
practice. We support local government, the public, corporate and voluntary 
sectors in ensuring transparency, accountability and greater involvement in their 
governance processes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10

http://www.cfgs.org.uk/governancerisk
mailto:ed.hammond@cfgs.org.uk


3 
 

Contents 
Introduction       4 

Your role and responsibility    4 

Raising concerns      6 

The framework      6 

What to do now?      11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



4 
 

Introduction 
Good governance is everyone’s responsibility. 

As a councillor or officer, whatever your role, you are likely to carry out work that 
intersects with the council’s governance framework every day. 

This material explains your role and responsibility and the role and 
responsibilities of the council’s statutory officers and political leadership. It is 
complemented by more detailed information online at 
www.cfgs.org.uk/governancerisk   

It sets out the basics of our framework on governance risk and resilience – a set 
of material which has been developed to support councils. It includes information 
on: 

• Seven characteristics which will help you to anticipate governance risk; 
• The ways that you can work with others to manage that risk; 
• The ways that you can adapt your approach by learning from that 

experience. 

Our framework is designed to reflect and supplement the broader CIPFA/SOLACE: 
"Delivering good governance in local government" framework (2016).  

You can read more about how we developed the framework with our partners at 
Localis, and supported by a range of other organisations, at 
www.cfgs.org.uk/governancerisk  

Your role and responsibility 
If you are a council officer or a councillor you have a responsibility for good 
governance in how you go about your role day to day. This guide is aimed at giving 
you the tools to reflect on these issues and think about how things might need to 
improve. 

In doing so you will need to consider that your take on these issues – and 
particularly on the presence of risks – will be subjective and may not accord with 
that of others. Part of this process is about refining your own views by reflecting 
on what others tell you about their own experiences. 

You may have particular responsibilities, which will mean you have the 
opportunity to see problems that others haven’t noticed. But you may also think 
that something is significant and extremely troubling when, in fact, there is a 
wider context and mitigations in place of which you are not aware. We do not say 
this to dissuade debate – the opposite in fact. It is only by discussing these 

Page 12

http://www.cfgs.org.uk/governancerisk
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/d/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government-framework-2016-edition
http://www.cfgs.org.uk/governancerisk


5 
 

matters that individuals and councils can, collectively, understand where risks lie 
and their relative levels of importance. 

People in senior roles in the organisation, both member and officer, have a duty 
to ensure that you are able to do this.  An environment should exist in which you 
can have the confidence to be able to have frank and candid conversations about 
these kinds of risk, and to work with others to find the solutions.  

If this culture doesn’t exist – if highlighting these issues is frowned upon or 
ignored – that is, itself, a marker of concern, and a risk around governance 
resilience. Under these circumstances, there are still things that you and your 
peers will be able to do. 

Roles of those with leadership 
responsibilities 

There are a few key officers and councillors at the top of an organisation with 
specific responsibilities for a council’s governance. The principal amongst these 
people are sometimes described as the “golden triangle”, although in this 
material we call them the “principal statutory officers”. They consist of: 

• The Head of Paid Service (the Chief Executive); 
• The Monitoring Officer (Head of Law, or Chief Legal Officer or similar – this 

person does not have to be a qualified lawyer); 
• The s151 Officer (Head of Finance – this person does have to be a qualified 

accountant). 

Others also hold key responsibilities. This includes other senior officers, and 
councillors in leadership positions – not just the Leader and Cabinet (or, in the 
case of a committee system authority, committee chairs) but also the chairs of 
key committees like audit and scrutiny.  

Each individual has specific legal responsibilities. Collectively they have a role to 
make sure that the council is run in a way that is accountable and transparent, 
that involves councillors, partners and the public, and overall that lives up to the 
principles of good governance. We have produced separate material which 
provides advice to these officers on how they can support you to use this 
framework effectively which can be found at www.cfgs.org.uk/governancerisk. 

There are others with similar responsibilities. The council’s statutory scrutiny 
officer has responsibilities around the authority’s member-led overview and 
scrutiny function; other officers may hold responsibility for the delivery of 
services required by law. On the councillor side, individual Cabinet members (in 
the case of authorities operating executive arrangements) may hold statutory 
responsibilities – on children’s services, for example. Ultimately, the Leader of 
the Council – and Leaders of other political groups – have a general responsibility 

Page 13

http://www.cfgs.org.uk/governancerisk
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/800048/Statutory_Guidance_on_Overview_and_Scrutiny_in_Local_and_Combined_Authorities.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/800048/Statutory_Guidance_on_Overview_and_Scrutiny_in_Local_and_Combined_Authorities.pdf


6 
 

to “set the tone” of how governance, and the council’s political culture, intersect 
to create a positive working environment. 

Raising concerns 
This may be particularly needed in situations where, as an officer or member 
raising an issue, you find yourself isolated or part of an organisation which is 
particularly introspective or defensive, and where you have discussed the issue 
with others and exhausted all possible local avenues for action. The external help 
offered from organisations like CfGS, national sector bodies, and/or membership 
organisations, can help you to navigate these situations.  

If you are an elected member your words carry weight. You may believe strongly 
that the council suffers from significant weakness; you may want to highlight and 
publicise that view. But you are not a spectator in the governance of the 
authority – you are part of it, and like everyone else you have a duty to work with 
others to try and improve things. Your view of the situation may be accurate – 
but it may not be, and you may need to temper your concerns by comparing your 
conclusions with those of others. Where you do have urgent concerns – and 
where you have made efforts to engage with the council’s principal statutory 
officers to resolve them without success – we have suggestions for other routes 
you can take that will lead to quick and decisive action. 

The framework 
Our analytical framework provides you, your colleagues and peers with a common 
language to explore and understand these matters, and helps you to take action 
to improve. 

The framework is about the work that needs to be done to anticipate, manage 
and adapt to the need for action to address risks in governance. This part of our 
material provides a basic introduction to the framework – you can find more 
detailed information here:  

Your role as a councillor or officer is most likely to sit around anticipation – 
keeping a “watching brief” on matters relating to governance that you are likely to 
encounter, having the understanding of these matters so that you know what 
good, and bad, behaviours look like, and being able to bring any concerns to the 
attention of others. 

 

 

 

Page 14



7 
 

 

We think that the council’s principal statutory officers should have a role in 
supporting you to do the above work. Even if your council doesn’t have formal 
systems in place to do this, there is still important work you can do to be aware, 
and take action, on governance matters of which you might be aware. 

Anticipating 

One of the main aims of this framework is to provide a “common language” to 
describe, understand and observe and prepare for governance risks and 
behaviours that people can use to share their perceptions of what is going well, 
and what might be going not so well. 

We have produced a set of seven governance characteristics, each accompanied 
by a set of practical behaviours, which you can use to explore these issues. You 
will have subjective views of these issues based on your experiences which you 
can note down, consider and reflect on.  

The seven characteristics invite consideration of the following points: 

• Extent of recognition of individual and collective responsibility for good 
governance. This is about ownership of governance and its associated systems; 

• Awareness of political dynamics. This is about the understanding of the unique 
role that politics plays in local governance and local government. Positive 
behaviour here recognises the need for the tension and “grit” in the system that 
local politics brings, and its positive impact on making decision-making more 
robust; 

Page 15



8 
 

• How the council looks to the future to set its decision-making priorities. This is 
about future planning, and insight into what the future might hold for the area, or 
for the council as an institution and includes the way the council thinks about 
risk; 

• Officer and councillor roles. Particularly at the top level, this is about clear mutual 
roles in support of robust and effective decision-making and oversight. It also 
links to communication between key individuals, and circumstances where 
ownership means that everyone has a clear sense of where accountability and 
responsibility lie; 

• How the council’s real situation compares to its sense of itself. This is about 
internal candour and reflection; the need to face up to unpleasant realities and to 
listen to dissenting voices. The idea of a council turning its back on things “not 
invented here” may be evidence of poor behaviours, but equally a focus on new 
initiatives and “innovation” as a way to distract attention, and to procrastinate, 
may also be present; 

• Quality of local (external) relationships. This is about the council’s ability to 
integrate an understanding of partnership working and partnership needs in its 
governance arrangements, and about a similar integration of an understanding of 
the local community and its needs. It is about the extent to which power and 
information is shared and different perspectives brought into the decision-making, 
and oversight, process; 

• The state of member oversight through scrutiny and audit. This is about scrutiny 
by councillors, and supervision and accountability overall. 

Each of our seven characteristics is accompanied by a set of positive and 
negative behaviours, which should be used as prompts rather than a checklist. 
For some of these, you may not know or see enough to be able to make an 
accurate judgment.  

The behaviours you see at your council may not easily match with the examples 
in our framework. That’s OK; all the examples given are prompts to allow you to 
structure and organise your thinking. They should specifically not be seen as a 
checklist, and you should not be adding up the number of “positive” and 
“negative” behaviours you’ve seen to give you a “mark”. The behaviours are 
available online at www.cfgs.org.uk/governancerisk/#seven. 

Considering, discussing and forming a view of the situation in your council, is 
arguably the most important part of the framework. 

Talking it through with others 

Once you have explored the characteristics and behaviours yourself, we suggest 
that you share your thoughts with: 

• If you are an officer:  
o Your team-mates (this might be a project team or a group of people 

who share the same line manager); 
o The direct reports of a particular corporate or service director; 
o Other officers who share your professional specialism (for example, 

other financial or legal professionals, or other governance 
professionals); 

Page 16

http://www.cfgs.org.uk/


9 
 

• If you are a councillor:  
o Other members of your Group; 
o People who sit on the same committee as you. 

Under certain circumstances it might be appropriate to test your conclusions by 
discussing them with people outside your organisation as well.  

CfGS is able to provide independent support and facilitation, and provides a range 
of support services relating to governance and scrutiny – including a helpdesk for 
councillors and officers wanting advice and support, and direct support to 
councils on associated matters delivered in partnership with the LGA.  

Membership organisations such as SOLACE, CIPFA, LLG and ADSO may provide 
mechanisms for this to happen at a national level, and for councillor, LGA 
political groups (in particular councillor peers) might provide this opportunity, as 
might the LGA’s principal advisers. At a more local level, partners with whom you 
may work regularly could have their own insights. More information is available 
on this kind of help here. 

The responses of others within (and outside) your council are likely to be 
different.  

For many matters that you might have identified, the process of discussion may 
help you to find solutions – or you may need to escalate more complex matters 
elsewhere in the organisation.  

This may be to a corporate or service director, or to a senior statutory officer 
such as the Monitoring Officer. We have produced separate material to suggest to 
such officers the kind of systems that they can put in place to allow you to 
escalate matters proportionately and effectively. 

Managing 

This is about managing risks as they become apparent, and putting in place 
effective solutions.  

The reflections that you make and the conclusions you reach after discussions 
with others might lead to the view that there are issues with governance at the 
council that need to be resolved. 

Accepting that this is the case will be important – and difficult. For some 
councils, a defensiveness over where weaknesses might exist may be a symptom 
of the weaknesses themselves. For some authorities political and organisational 
circumstances may make admissions of such risk a real challenge.  

The framework is designed to work bottom-up. Individual officers and members, 
and members and officers together, will need to have the confidence to think 
through where it is within their power to make improvements, and where the 

Page 17

https://solace.org.uk/
http://www.cipfa.org.uk/
https://www.lawyersinlocalgovernment.org.uk/
https://www.adso.co.uk/
https://www.local.gov.uk/about/our-meetings-and-leadership/political-composition/political-groups
https://www.local.gov.uk/about/our-meetings-and-leadership/political-composition/political-groups
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-independent/our-work/member-peers
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/lga-principal-advisers


10 
 

support of others may be necessary. We understand that this may be challenging 
in some circumstances, which is why the framework rests on the availability of 
support from external sector bodies.  

• For some, practical improvements could be identified between a small 
group of officers. This may involve changes to systems, or to behaviours, to 
address concerns and to strengthen safeguards; 

• For more complex problems and/or those affecting the wider council, 
others need to be involved. You should have confidence to bring concerns 
on governance to the attention of the senior, statutory officers, who should 
listen to those within the organisation voicing those concerns (as well as 
providing the space for these conversations to happen); 

• For some complex problems, assistance and assurance from external 
organisations may be necessary. This may be as simple as making contact 
with peers or other colleagues to get a sense check on a situation, or 
drawing on support from organisations such as CfGS or member bodies.  

When the risk and its potential consequences are recognised and understood, 
those involved can move to identify solutions. 

Putting together solutions for challenges in governance is not as simple as 
developing an action plans. Solutions are likely to be about focusing on 
behaviours and organisational culture. The assistance of those in the organisation 
with a particular expertise and understanding of behavioural issues will be useful. 
As above, people from outside the organisation may be in a position to provide 
advice too – but ownership should always be taken by those at the local level.  

Engaging in conversations with others is the best way to work out what 
improvements can be made, and who might take responsibility for them. It will 
be in everyone’s interests to identify those improvements and a pluralistic, 
inclusive approach will be important in making sure that everyone with a stake in 
both the risk, and the solution, is involved. 

Adapting 

In the medium and long term, it will be important to make sure that 
improvements to governance "stick" – that they are sustainable, and they are 
used to support ongoing enhancements to the governance regime overall. 

This is about learning and organisational change. These elements of our 
framework require leadership from the top of the organisation – but individual 
officers and members hold collective responsibility in making sure that they have 
practical impact. At an individual level, this is about: 

• Staying reflective and self-critical – not making the assumption that 
solutions, once in place, will permanently improve things; 

• Thinking about what improvements to governance in your part of the 
organisation may mean for others in different spaces; 

Page 18



11 
 

• Thinking about who you work with, and how those relationships may evolve 
as governance improvements are embedded. 

At an organisational level, some of this learning and development may form part 
of a change programme, or other activity promoting organisational resilience more 
generally. It is right that things should be anchored in this way, and commitment 
from the principal statutory officers will provide this leadership. Our guidance to 
statutory officers goes into more detail on this point. 

What to do now? 
Our guide sets out a framework for managing challenges to governance, but this 
is a framework that individual councils must work to flesh out. As a local 
government officer, or a councillor, you have a responsibility to become aware, 
and to stay aware, of risks and challenges to governance as they develop in the 
areas of your responsibility – and to take action to address them when they 
cause concern. 

This has to happen in a way that shares responsibility rather than apportions 
blame – even where a council’s characteristics mean that it has a blame culture. 
The way that we have described the challenges and pressures on governance in 
this guide aims to provide you with a form of language to help you to support 
your colleagues and your council to break out of unproductive, introspective and 
defensive attitudes on this. But using it will also require that you model 
behaviours of mutual support, collective ownership and responsibility. External 
organisations exist to provide support on this matter and will be there, if internal 
systems don’t allow these matters to be understood, accepted and acted on. 

With this in mind, CfGS and those organisations supporting this guide and its 
contents are keen to provide support, particularly to individual officers and 
individual councillors who have concerns but are struggling to have them 
addressed. Part of the challenge of governance is that local circumstances are all 
different, and there is therefore no clear, national roadmap to improvement and 
change. You should know however that others in the sector are here to provide 
support, guidance and advice to resolving problems where they exist in a way 
which supports local action, local democracy and local decision-making. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



12 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Read the full framework at 

www.cfgs.org.uk/governancerisk 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20

http://www.cfgs.org.uk/governancerisk


Allerdale Borough Council – Executive Reports and Key Decisions 
 
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 
 

Decision Date decision to be 
made and decision 
maker 

Open/Exempt Portfolio Holder Officer contact details 

Getting Building Fund 
- Submission of an 
Outline Business Case 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking 
 
January 2021 

Part exempt 
 
 

Councillor Mike Johnson Brendan Carlin, 
Assistant Chief 
Executive (Innovation 
and Commercial) 
 
brendan.carlin@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Strategic Acquisition 
of Land and Buildings 
in Workington 
 
Key Decision 
 
The Chief Executive is 
asked to approve the 
terms relating to this 
acquisition under 
delegated powers to 
support this project 
which is funded by the 
Towns fund from a grant 

 
 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
January 2021 

Part exempt 
 
Commercial confidence 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Kevin Kerrigan, 
Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 11



award by the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities 
and Local Government. 
 
Allerdale Borough 
Council were offered the 
opportunity to apply for 
funding through the 
Towns Fund which is a 
Government sponsored 
fund to support and 
facilitate worthwhile 
projects in Towns 
throughout England 
following the Covid 
pandemic.  The Council 
submitted an application 
and were successful in 
receiving £750,000. 
Allerdale Borough 
Council as part of the 
application to MHCLG 
Town Fund put forward 
a project to purchase a 
derelict site in central 
Workington known as 
the Old Opera House. 

Scrap Metal Dealers 
Act 2013 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Jim Lister) 

Gillian Collinson, Senior 
Licencing And 
Compliance Officer 
 

P
age 22



 
Review of fees and 
charges and delegations 

Executive 
 
24 February 2021 

gillian.collinson@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Quarter 3 Finance 
Report Oct to Dec  
2020 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To inform members of 
the Council’s financial 
performance against 
budget for the period 
April to December 2019 
along with the forecast 
position to 31 March 
2020 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
24 February 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Chief Officer (Assets) 
and S151 Officer 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Quarter 3 Performance 
Report 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy Interim 
Delivery plan 2020/21 at 
the end of Quarter 3 
2020/21. 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
24 February 2021 

Open 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Resilient Communities 
Strategy 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Customer Experience 
and Innovation 
(Councillor Alan 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer, Helen Sant, 
Health Improvement 

P
age 23



 
To consider a Resilient 
Communities Strategy 
setting out the Council's 
approach to supporting 
communities 

Executive 
 
24 February 2021 

Pitcher), Executive 
Member: Environmental 
Services (Councillor 
Anthony Markley), 
Executive Member: 
Leisure and Tourism 
(Councillor John Cook), 
Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Manager 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk, 
helen.sant@allerdale.go
v.uk 

Cumbria Coastal 
Strategy 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
24 February 2021 

Open 
 
 

 Trevor Hurst, 
Engineer/Building 
Serveyor 
 
trevor.hurst@allerdale.g
ov.uk 

Workington Town 
Centre Supplementary 
Planning Document 
 
Key Decision 
 
This report will consider 
the adoption of the 
Workington Town 
Centre SPD. The 
document will provide 
further planning 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
Council 
 
24 February 2021 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Nik Hardy, Assistant 
Chief Executive (Policy, 
Performance and 
Economic Strategy) 
 
nik.hardy@allerdale.gov
.uk 

P
age 24



guidance for 
development in the town 
centre and will become 
a material planning 
consideration when 
deciding planning 
applications. 

Allerdale Investment 
Partnership - 
Consideration of 
Future Sites 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Chief Executive, Chief 
Officer (Assets) and 
S151 Officer 
 
February 2021 

Fully exempt 
 
 

Councillor Mike Johnson Brendan Carlin, 
Assistant Chief 
Executive (Innovation 
and Commercial) 
 
brendan.carlin@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Revenue & Capital 
Budget Proposals 
2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To seek approval for the 
revenue and capital 
budgets and to present 
the formal advice of the 
Chief Finance Officer on 
the robustness of 
estimates included in the 
budget and the 
adequacy of reserves 
which support the 

Executive  
 
24 February 2021  
 
Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Chief Officer (Assets) 
and S151 Officer 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

P
age 25



Council’s budgetary 
plans 

Capital Investment 
Strategy 2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To present the Capital 
Investment Strategy 

Executive  
 
24 February 2021  
 
Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Chief Officer (Assets) 
and S151 Officer 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Council Tax 
Resolution Report 
2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To approve the 
necessary resolutions 
for Council Tax setting in 
accordance with 
Sections 31 – 36 of the 
Local Government 
Finance Act 1992. 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Catherine Nicholson, 
Chief Officer (Assets) 
and S151 Officer 
 
catherine.nicholson@all
erdale.gov.uk 

Proposed review of 
Licensing Fees and 
Charges 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Executive Member: 
Finance and Legal 
(Councillor Jim Lister) 

Gillian Collinson, Senior 
Licencing And 
Compliance Officer 
 
gillian.collinson@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Treasury Management 
Strategy, Annual 

Audit Committee  
 

Open 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Barry Lennox, Financial 
Services Manager 

P
age 26



Investment Strategy 
and Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy 
Statement 2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To present the Treasury 
Management Strategy 
Statement, Annual 
Investment Strategy and 
Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy 
Statement 

25 February 2021  
 
Council 
 
3 March 2021 

  
barry.lennox@allerdale.
gov.uk 

Governance Updates 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

OSC Update report 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
3 March 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Michael 
Heaslip, Councillor Iain 
Greaney 

Ian Hinde, Policy Officer 
(Scrutiny and 
Partnerships) 
 
ian.hinde@allerdale.gov
.uk 

Award of the Statutory 
Stray Dog Contract 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 

Part exempt 
 
Commercially sensitive 
information 

Executive Member: 
Environmental Services 
(Councillor Anthony 
Markley) 

 
 
 

P
age 27



 
Decision of award of the 
Stray Dog contract 
following the 
Procurement process 

Chief Officer (Place and 
Governance) 
 
17 March 2021 

Strategic Acquisition 
of Buildings in 
Maryport 
 
Key Decision 
 
The proposed 
acquisition of buildings 
in Maryport to support 
regeneration proposals. 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
24 March 2021 

Part exempt 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Graeme Wilson, 
Programme Director for 
Maryport Regeneration 
 
graeme.wilson@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Allerdale Economic 
Strategy and 
Workington 
Investment Plan 
 
Key Decision 
 
To consider the 
refreshed Economic 
Strategy for the Borough 
and the Investment Plan 
as part of Workington 
Stronger Towns. 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
21 April 2021 

Fully exempt 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Nik Hardy, Assistant 
Chief Executive (Policy, 
Performance and 
Economic Strategy), 
Kevin Kerrigan, 
Programme Director for 
Workington 
 
nik.hardy@allerdale.gov
.uk, 
kevin.kerrigan@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

Revised Climate 
Change Action Plan 
 
Non-Key Decision 

Executive  
 
21 April 2021  
 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 

Ian Hinde, Policy Officer 
(Scrutiny and 
Partnerships) 
 

P
age 28



 
Updated version of plan 
approved March 2020 

Executive 
 
21 April 2021 

(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

ian.hinde@allerdale.gov
.uk 

Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Vehicle 
Tests 
 
Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Executive, Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Economic Growth, 
Community 
Development and 
Placemaking 
 
April 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Jim Lister Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Quarter 4 Performance 
Report 2020/21 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
A report detailing 
performance against the 
Council Strategy Interim 
Delivery plan 2020/21 at 
the end of Quarter 4 
2020/21. 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
 
12 May 2021 

Open 
 
 

Leader and Executive 
Member: Economic 
Growth, Community 
Development and 
Placemaking (Councillor 
Mike Johnson) 

Alex FitzGerald, Senior 
Policy and Improvement 
Officer 
 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Report from 
Constitution Working 
Group - Review of 
Council Governance 
Arrangements and 
Structure 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale

P
age 29



 
Non-Key Decision 

19 May 2021 .gov.uk 

Appointments to 
Committees 2021-22 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
19 May 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Appointments to 
Outside Bodies 2021-
22 
 
Non-Key Decision 
 
To appoint Council 
representatives to 
Outside Bodies and 
Joint Committees that 
are a function of the 
Council. 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
19 May 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Calendar of Meetings 
2021-22 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
19 May 2021 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 
Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Appointments to 
Outside Bodies 
 

 
 
 

Open 
 
 

Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald 

Sharon Sewell, Chief 
Officer (Place and 
Governance) and 

P
age 30



Non-Key Decision 
 
To appoint Council 
representatives to 
Outside Bodies that are 
a function of the 
Executive. 

 
Executive 
 
June 2021 

Monitoring Officer 
 
sharon.sewell@allerdale
.gov.uk 

Pay Policy Statement 
2021/22 
 
Non-Key Decision 

 
 
 
 
Council 
 
July 2021 

Open 
 
 

Deputy Leader and 
Executive Member: 
Policy, Governance and 
People Resources 
(Councillor Marion 
Fitzgerald) 

Kathryn Higgins, HR 
Advisor 
 
kathryn.higgins@allerdal
e.gov.uk 

 
Meetings of the Council, Executive and Scrutiny Committees are open to the public (except when exempt (confidential) items are 
being considered).  It is advisable to check the agenda before attending a meeting, as decision dates may be subject to change.   
Agendas and supporting documents for meetings of the Executive can be found on the Council’s website www.allerdale.gov.uk or 
at Allerdale House, Workington, Cumbria, CA14 3YJ 
 
Further information is available by calling 01900 702502 
 
Any representations as to why a meeting should be open to the public should be made in writing to Democratic Services at the 
above address. 
 
A list of the Executive members can be found at http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11

P
age 31

http://www.allerdale.gov.uk/
http://democracy.allerdale.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=11


T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 32



  

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2020-2021    

Last updated: 17/03/2021 

 

Meeting Date  Items  Further Information Format Council 
Strategy 
Theme 

 

Friday 23 
April  
 

Reports from 
representatives 
to other scrutiny 
bodies 

There are a number of other scrutiny bodies which the Council is 
represented on. Other scrutiny bodies to provide update on their 
work: 
LEP Scrutiny Board 
Cumbria Police and Crime Panel Joint Committee 
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 
Sellafield sites stakeholder group 

Presentation / 
Committee meeting 
agenda item 

Resilient 
communities  
 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor  

Annual work 
programme 2021-
2022 

Consideration of items for the work programme during the next 
municipal year. 

Committee meeting 
agenda item 

All Council 
strategy priorities 

Lead Officer – Head of Strategy, Policy and Performance 

Regular items for each Committee agenda 
 
Items  

 

Council Strategy 
Priority  

 

Purpose  
 

Lead Officer  
 

Lead Portfolio Holder   
 

Lead Scrutiny Member  
 

Forward Plan All Council Plan priorities To identify any forthcoming items which 
the Committee may consider  

Head of Governance and 
Regulatory Services 

Leader of the Council  Co-Chairs of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Work Programme 
Updates  

All Council Plan priorities To provide the Committee with the 
opportunity to review  its’ own work plan 
for the rest of the year  

Policy Officer (Scrutiny 
and Partnerships) 

Not applicable Co-Chairs of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Task and Finish 
Group Updates  

All Council Plan priorities To receive progress reports from any 
Task and Finish Group 

Policy Officer (Scrutiny 
and Partnerships) 

Not applicable Chair of individual Task and Finish 
Groups 

 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 12



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 34


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	8 Future development of Overview and Scrutiny
	11 Forward Plan
	12 Work Programme 2020/21

